IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 89,959

MICHAEL MORDENTI,

Appellant,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT
OF THE THIRTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
FOR HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

TERRI L. BACKHUS Chief Assistant CCR Florida Bar No. 0946427

OFFICE OF THE CAPITAL
COLLATERAL REPRESENTATIVE
405 North Reo Street
Suite 150
Tampa, FL 33609-1004
(813) 871-7900

COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

<u>...</u>

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

ž

The Circuit Court for the Thirteenth Judicial Circuit, in and for Hillsborough County, Florida, entered the judgment of convictions and death sentence at issue. Mr. Mordenti was indicted by the grand jury in Hillsborough County, Florida, on March 14, 1990 (R. 1591-1593). He was charged with first-degree murder and conspiracy to commit first degree murder.

Mr. Mordenti's jury trial commenced July 8, 1991. The jury found Mr. Mordenti guilty of both counts. The penalty phase took place on July 29, 1991. The jury rendered a sentencing verdict of death by a vote of eleven to one (R. 1499). On September 6, 1991, the Court sentenced Mr. Mordenti to death (R. 1547). The trial court entered written findings (R. 1774).

The Supreme Court of Florida affirmed Mr. Mordenti's convictions and sentences. Mordenti v. State, 630 So.2d 1080 (Fla. 1994). Mr. Mordenti filed a petition for writ of certiorari in the United States Supreme Court, which was denied on June 20, 1994. Mordenti v. Florida, 114 S. Ct. 2726 (1994).

On September 2, 1995, Mr. Mordenti filed a motion to vacate judgments of convictions and sentences with special request for leave to amend. (PC-R. 24). On September 30, 1996, the circuit court denied Mr. Mordenti's motion to vacate without granting a hearing of any kind. (PC-R. 216).

On October 17, 1996, Mr. Mordenti filed a motion for rehearing. (PC-R. 277). The circuit court denied the motion for

rehearing on January 7, 1997. (PC-R. 407). As a result, Mr. Mordenti filed notice of appeal to this Court.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

- 1. Mr. Mordenti is entitled to a $\underline{\text{Huff}}$ hearing on all of the claims raised in his Rule 3.850 motion. The trial court erred in summarily denying this motion without giving Mr. Mordenti the benefit of argument on any of his claims contrary to Huff v. State.
- 2. Mr. Mordenti is entitled to a full evidentiary hearing on all the claims raised in his Rule 3.850 motion. Mr. Mordenti pled specific, detailed claims for relief which are legally sufficient and are not conclusively refuted by this record.
- 3. Mr. Mordenti has been denied access to the files and records in the possession of certain state agencies which pertain to his case. Such materials have been withheld in violation of Chapter 119, Fla. Stat., the Due Process and Equal Protection Clauses of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution, the Eighth Amendment, and the corresponding provisions of the Florida Constitution.
- 4. Requiring Mr. Mordenti, a death sentenced individual, to file a motion under Rule 3.851 one year after his conviction has become final violates his rights of due process and equal protection of the law under the Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution.
- 5. Mr. Mordenti was denied effective assistance of counsel at the guilt and penalty phases of his trial. Counsel failed to

- adequately investigate and prepare a defense, and to challenge the state's case. Counsel was also rendered ineffective by the actions of the state and the trial court.
- 6. Mr. Mordenti's proceedings were prejudicially tainted by the erroneous admission of hearsay.
- 7. Mr. Mordenti's Sixth, Eighth and Fourteenth Amendment rights were violated because no reliable transcript of his capital trial exists. Therefore, reliable appellate review was and is impossible.
- 8. Mr. Mordenti was denied a fair and impartial trial in violation of the Fifth, Sixth, Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments because the trial court permitted the state to introduce gruesome and shocking photographs.
- 9. Mr. Mordenti's rights under the Sixth, Eighth, and Fourteenth Amendments were violated when defense counsel failed to adequately question potential jurors about their views on the death penalty and failed to ensure an impartial jury.
- 10. Mr. Mordenti was denied effective assistance of counsel and his right to be judged by a jury truly representative of the community in violation of the Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments through trial counsel's ignorance of basic decisions such as State v. Neil, State v. Slappy, and Batson v. Kentucky.
- 11. Mr. Mordenti was deprived of his right to remain silent in violation of the Fifth, Sixth, Eighth and Fourteenth

 Amendments to the United States Constitution.

- 12. The trial court erroneously instructed Mr. Mordenti's jury on the standard by which they must judge expert testimony.
- 13. The trial court erred when it permitted Mr. Mordenti's jury to hear alleged co-conspirator statements. The court erred in failing to properly instruct the jury.
- 14. The state's use of misleading testimony and improper argument violated the constitutional rights of Mr. Mordenti under the Sixth, Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments. Mr. Mordenti's counsel was ineffective for not objecting to the improper conduct by the state.
- 15. In the penalty phase of Mr. Mordenti's trial, the prosecutor's argument was improper, inflammatory and the prosecutor argued non-statutory aggravating factors to both the judge and the jury. This argument and the sentencing court's reliance on it rendered Mr. Mordenti's conviction and resulting death sentence fundamentally unfair and unreliable in violation of the Sixth, Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments.
- 16. Mr. Mordenti's judge failed to consider mitigating factors which were clearly set out in the record in violation of the Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments.
- 17. The failure to present to Mr. Mordenti's sentencing jury evidence of his good record while awaiting trial deprived Mr. Mordenti of a reliable sentencing determination under the Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution.

- 18. Mr. Mordenti's death sentence was tainted by unconstitutionally vague instructions to the jury and by improper application of the statutory aggravators of "cold, calculated, and premeditated" and "heinous, atrocious, and cruel" contrary to United States Supreme Court holdings in Espinosa V. Florida and Richmond v. Lewis, and in violation of the Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments.
 - 19. Mr. Mordenti's jury was repeatedly misled as to the real weight of his responsibility in the sentencing process in violation of the Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments.
 - 20. The penalty phase jury instructions unconstitutionally shifted the burden to Mr. Mordenti to prove that death was inappropriate, and the judge employed the same erroneous standard in sentencing. To the extent that trial counsel failed to object or argue, he rendered ineffective assistance of counsel.
 - 21. Florida's statute setting forth the aggravating circumstances to be considered in a capital case is facially vague and overbroad in violation of the Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments. The facial invalidity of the statute was not cured in Mr. Mordenti's case because the jury did not receive adequate guidance. As a result, Mr. Mordenti's sentence of death is premised upon fundamental error that now must be corrected.
 - 22. Mr. Mordenti is innocent of the death penalty.
- 23. Mr. Mordenti was denied his rights under the Fourth, Fifth, Sixth, Eighth, and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution, and the corresponding provisions of the

Florida Constitution, when the prosecutor impermissibly suggested to the jury that the **law** required that it recommend **a** sentence of death.

- 24. The rule prohibiting Mr. Mordenti from interviewing jurors to determine if juror misconduct has occurred denies Mr. Mordenti equal protection under the law and violates the First, Sixth, Eighth, and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution and corresponding provisions of the Florida Constitution.
- 25. Juror misconduct occurred in the guilt and penalty phases of Mr. Mordenti's trial in violation of the Sixth, Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution and the corresponding provisions of the Florida Constitution.
- 26. Florida's capital sentencing scheme is unconstitutional on its face and as applied in this case.
- 27. Mr. Mordenti's trial court proceedings were fraught with procedural and substantive errors. He did not receive the fundamentally fair trial to which he was entitled under the Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments. These errors cannot be harmless when viewed as a whole.

ARGUMENT I

MR. MORDENTI IS ENTITLED TO A <u>HUFF V. STATE</u> HEARING ON HIS RULE 3.850 CLAIMS.

Mr. Mordenti timely filed his initial post-conviction motion on September 2, 1995, as mandated by law. (PC-R. 24). Mr. Mordenti initiated these proceedings so he could effectively litigate his claims and compel compliance with his Chapter 119 requests.

On September 30, 1996, the trial court summarily denied the motion without holding a hearing of any kind. (PC-R. 216-231). The trial court held no status hearing at which Mr. Mordenti could compel reluctant state agencies to comply with Chapter 119. The trial court attached nothing to the order denying relief.

Despite the argument of the state in its response conceding that a hearing was proper, the court refused to grant a hearing. (PC-R. 216-231).

Under <u>Huff v. State</u>, 622 **So.2d** 982 (**Fla. 1993**), this Court held:

Because of the severity of punishment at issue in $\bf a$ death penalty postconviction case, we have determined that henceforth the judge must allow the attorneys the opportunity to appear before the court and be heard on an initial 3.850 motion.

Huff v. State, 622 So.2d at 983.

Contrary to <u>Huff</u>, this procedure was not followed. As a result, Mr. Mordenti was not given "fair notice and a reasonable opportunity to be heard." See, <u>Huff</u> at 983, quoting <u>Scull v.</u>

<u>State</u>, 569 So.2d 1251, 1252 (Fla. 1990). This cause should be

remanded back to the circuit court for an opportunity to conduct a Huff hearing in accordance with the law.

ARGUMENT II

MR. MORDENTI IS ENTITLED TO AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING ON HIS 3.850 CLAIMS.

On September 2, 1995, Mr. Mordenti filed his first Motion to Vacate Judgments of Conviction and Sentence with Special Request for Leave to Amend and for Evidentiary Hearing. He pled detailed issues which this Court has held require an evidentiary hearing.

On September 30, 1996, the Hillsborough County trial court summarily denied the motion without granting a hearing of any kind. (PC-R. 216-231). The trial court held no status hearing at which Mr. Mordenti could compel the reluctant state agencies to comply with Chapter 119. The trial court attached nothing to the order denying relief.

A trial court has only two options when presented with a Rule 3.850 motion: "either grant appellant an evidentiary hearing, or alternatively attach to any order denying relief adequate portions of the record affirmatively demonstrating that appellant is not entitled to relief on the claims asserted."

Witherspoon v. State, 590 So.2d 1138 (4th DCA 1992). A trial court may not summarily deny without "attach(ing) portions of the files and records conclusively showing the appellant is entitled to no relief," Rodriquez v. State, 592 So.2d 1261 (2nd DCA, 1992). See also Brown v. State, 596 So.2d 1026, 1028 (Fla. 1992).

The law strongly favors full evidentiary hearings in capital post-conviction cases, especially where a claim is grounded in factual as opposed to legal matters. "Because the trial court denied the motion without an evidentiary hearing and without attaching any portion of the record to the order of denial, our review is limited to determining whether the motion conclusively shows on its face that [Mr. Mordentil is entitled to no relief." Gorham v. State, 521 So.2d 1067, 1069 (Fla. 1988). See also LeDuc v. State, 415 So.2d 721, 722 (Fla. 1982).

Some fact-based post-conviction claims by their nature can only be considered after an evidentiary hearing. Heinev v. State, 558 So.2d 398, 400 (Fla. 1990). "The need for an evidentiary hearing presupposes that there are issues of fact which cannot be conclusively resolved by the record. When a determination has been made that a defendant is entitled to such an evidentiary hearing (as in this case), denial of that right would constitute denial of all due process and could never be harmless." Holland v. State, 503 So.2d 1250, 1252-53 (Fla. 1987). "Accepting the allegations . . . at face value, as we must for purposes of this appeal, they are sufficient to require an evidentiary hearing." Lightbourne v. Dugger, 549 So.2d 1364, 1365 (Fla. 1989).

Mr. Mordenti has pled substantial, factual allegations which go to the fundamental fairness of his conviction and to the appropriateness of his death sentence. "Because we cannot say that the record conclusively shows [Mr. Mordentil is entitled to

no relief, we must remand this issue to the trial court for an evidentiary hearing." Demps v. State, 416 So.2d 808, 809 (Fla. 1982) (citation omitted).

Under Rule 3.850 and this Court's well-settled precedent, a post-conviction movant is entitled to an evidentiary hearing unless "the motion and the files and the records in the case conclusively show that the prisoner is entitled to no relief."

Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.850; Hoffman; Lemon; O'Callaghan; Gorham. Mr. Mordenti has alleged facts which, if proven, would entitle him to relief. Furthermore, the files and records in this case do not conclusively show that he is entitled to no relief.

The trial court's denial of Mr. Mordenti's Rule 3.850 motion stands in stark contrast to the clear and unmistakable requirements of law. It makes no use of the record or files in this case to show conclusively that Mr. Mordenti is not entitled to relief. It attempts no analysis whatsoever. The order ignores the express requirements of Rule 3.850 and is oblivious to the substantial body of caselaw from this Court holding that courts must comply with the rule and, at least, conduct a hearing. Huff v. State, 622 So.2d 982 (Fla. 1993).

As in <u>Hoffman</u>, this Court has "no choice but to reverse the order under review and remand," 571 So.2d at 450, and order a full and complete evidentiary hearing on Mr. Mordenti's 3.850 claims.

ARGUMENT III

ACCESS TO THE FILES AND RECORDS PERTAINING TO MR. MORDENTI'S CASE IN THE POSSESSION OF CERTAIN STATE AGENCIES HAVE BEEN WITHHELD IN VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLA. STAT., THE DUE PROCESS AND EQUAL PROTECTION CLAUSES OF THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, THE EIGHTH AMENDMENT, AND THE CORRESPONDING PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION.

Mr. Mordenti filed his Rule 3.850 motion on September 2, 1995. The motion pled sufficient facts to require the trial court to order an evidentiary hearing. The pleading also outlined Mr. Mordenti's difficulty in pleading his claims because of the state's failure to comply with Chapter 119 public records requests. Claim II of the Rule 3.850 motion informed the trial court that Mr. Mordenti was requesting a hearing to gain the court's assistance in acquiring the public records that were being withheld. (PC-R. 90-94).

Mr. Mordenti's only remedy at that point in the proceedings was to file a motion to compel to litigate these issues.

However, this remedy was removed as an option by Judge Padgett's order denying relief. (PC-R. 221).

Capital post-conviction defendants are entitled to Chapter 119 records disclosure. State v. Kokal, 562 So.2d 364 (Fla. 1990); Jennings v. State, 583 So.2d 316 (Fla. 1991); Hoffman v. State, 613 So.2d. 405 (Fla. 1992); Mendyk v. State, 592 So.2d 1076 (Fla. 1992). This Court has extended the time period for filing Rule 3.850 motions after Chapter 119 disclosure. See Jennings; Kokal. In these cases, sixty (60) days was afforded to

litigants to amend Rule 3.850 motions in light of newly disclosed Chapter 119 materials.

The state's failure to provide the requested records has delayed Mr. Mordenti's post-conviction investigation and made it impossible for him to fully plead and raise any violations which may become apparent from the records he seeks. The failure to comply with Chapter 119 law constitutes external impediments which have thwarted Mr. Mordenti's efforts to establish he is entitled to post-conviction relief. The matter must be remanded to permit Mr. Mordenti an opportunity to pursue Chapter 119 materials.

ARGUMENT IV

REQUIRING MR. MORDENTI, A DEATH SENTENCED INDIVIDUAL, TO FILE A MOTION UNDER RULE 3.851 OF THE RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE ONE YEAR AFTER HIS CONVICTION HAS BECOME FINAL VIOLATES HIS RIGHTS OF DUE PROCESS AND EQUAL PROTECTION OF THE LAW UNDER THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

On January 1, 1994, Rule 3.851 of the Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure went into effect. Under this rule capital defendants are allowed one year from the date their conviction becomes final to file a motion to vacate Judgement and Sentence under Rule 3.850 of the Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure. Rule 3.851, which sets out this time requirement, is unconstitutional on its face and in its application since it denies Mr. Mordenti due process and equal protection of the law as guaranteed by the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States

Constitution. Rule 3.851's time requirement also violates Article I, §§ 2, 13 and 21 of the Florida Constitution.

Rule 3.851 carves out a class of persons, criminal defendants sentenced to death, and treats them differently from all other persons seeking relief under Florida's post-conviction procedure for no legitimate reason. This is a violation of Article 1, §2 of the Florida Constitution as well as the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.

By depriving Mr. Mordenti of sufficient time to investigate and at the same time overloading Mr. Mordenti's counsel with an unprecedented number of cases, the State has also deprived him of his right to access to the courts. The United States Supreme Court in a long line of cases beginning with Griffin v. Illinois, 351 U.S. 12 (1956), Lane v. Brown, 372 U.S. 477 (1963), Rinaldi v. Yeaqer, 384 U.S. 305 (1966), Bounds v. Smith, 430 U.S. 817 (1977) recognized the right of convicted inmates to unrestricted access to courts in order to use established avenues for seeking post-conviction relief.

The Florida Constitution requires that the courts of this state be open to every person. <u>See</u> Article I, § 21, Florida Constitution. Even the Florida Supreme Court in the comment to

¹In various meetings contemplating the adoption of Rule 3.851 it was determined that the Florida Supreme Court affirms about 20 capital cases a year. Based on this estimate the funding decisions were made by the Florida Legislature, and the Florida Bar Association. This projection contemplated that Mr. Mordenti's counsel's office would receive two new capital cases per month. As pointed out above, the current affirmance of 47 cases more than doubles the projected number.

Rule 3.851 provides that if Mr. Mordenti's counsel is not fully funded, this restrictive time limit under Rule 3.851 is unjustified. It has been abundantly clear in the last six months, that the office of CCR, particularly the middle region, is grossly underfunded.

Additionally, this restrictive rule effectively suspends Mr. Mordenti's right of habeas corpus. In discussing the procedural aspects of Rule 3.850, the Florida Supreme Court has said:

In the case of State v. Bolyea, 520 So.2d 562, 563 (Fla. 1988), we recognized that Rule 3.850 is a "procedural vehicle for the collateral remedy otherwise available by writ of habeas corpus." Accordingly, in approaching the present case, we must be mindful that the right to habeas relief protected by article I, section 13 of the Florida Constitution is implicated here.

Haaq v. State, 591 So.2d 614, 616 (Fla. 1992). Because Rule 3.850 implicates the right to habeas corpus found in Article I, § 13 of the Florida Constitution, the procedural rules surrounding Rule 3.850 must be consistent with the right to habeas corpus. The restrictive time requirements adopted by Rule 3.851, not applicable to any person but capital petitioners, does not promote fairness and effectively suspends Mr. Mordenti's right to petition for a writ of habeas corpus.

ARGUMENT V

MR. MORDENTI WAS DENIED THE EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL PRETRIAL AND AT THE GUILT/INNOCENCE PHASE OF HIS TRIAL, IN VIOLATION OF THE SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS. COUNSEL FAILED TO ADEOUATELY INVESTIGATE AND PREPARE MR. MORDENTI'S CASE TO CHALLENGE THE STATE'S CASE, AND FAILED TO ZEALOUSLY ADVOCATE ON BEHALF OF HIS CLIENT. AS A RESULT, A FULL ADVERSARIAL TESTING DID NOT OCCUR. PERFORMANCE WAS DEFICIENT. THE COURT AND STATE RENDERED COUNSEL INEFFECTIVE. THEREFORE, MR. MORDENTI'S CONVICTIONS AND DEATH SENTENCE ARE UNRELIABLE.

In Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668 (1984), the Supreme Court held that counsel has "a duty to bring to bear such skill and knowledge as will render the trial a reliable adversarial testing process." 466 U.S. at 668 (citation omitted). Strickland v. Washington requires a defendant to plead and demonstrate: 1) unreasonable attorney performance, and 2) prejudice. Mr. Mordenti pleads each in the instant motion. Given a full and fair evidentiary hearing, he can prove each. He is entitled, at a minimum, to an adequate evidentiary hearing on these claims.

The State's case against Mr. Mordenti was circumstantial at best. There was no eye-witness, no murder weapon found, no physical evidence linking Mr. Mordenti to the murder of Thelma Royston.² In fact, Mr, Mordenti had an alibi capable of verification by several people. Defense counsel failed to

²Isabel Reger, the victim's mother, testified at trial. Ms. Reger was allowed to give a description of the murderer. Her description did not fit Mr. Mordenti.

thoroughly investigate Mr. Mordenti's alibi, failed to present corroborating evidence and failed to call witnesses who could verify Mr. Mordenti's whereabouts the night Thelma Royston was murdered. Defense counsel's performance fell well below the constitutional standard and mandates that Mr. Mordenti be granted relief.

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