IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

MICHAEL MORDENTI,

Appellant,

vs.

CASE NO. 89,959

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ANSWER BRIEF OF THE APPELLEE;

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

ROBERT J. LANDRY
Aasiatant Attorney General
Florida Bar I.D. No. 0134101
2002 North Lois Avenue, Suite 700
Tampa, Florida 33607
(813)873-4739

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

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

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

- I. The failure of the trial court to conduct a hearing pursuant to <u>Huff, 622</u> So.2d 982 (Fla. 1993), if error, is harmless error. It is abundantly clear that no evidentiary hearing was required and relief was not warranted on the 3.850 motion. <u>See Groover v. State.</u> ____ So.2d , 22 Florida Law Weekly S509 (Fla. 1997).
- II. The trial court correctly denied relief without an evidentiary hearing since the motion did not allege substantial factual allegations which were not refuted by the record meriting an evidentiary hearing. See <u>Lopez v. Singletary</u>, 634 So.2d 1054 (Fla. 1993); Atkins v. Duaaer, 541 So.2d 1165 (Fla. 1989).

٤

- that appellant's Chapter 119 requests were unrelated to his conviction and sentence. The record reflects that the prosecutor provided her complete file and appellant's subsequent filing of notices after the lower court jurisdiction is irrelevant. Alternatively, this Court could permit a limited remand as in Lopez v. State, 634 So.2d 725 (Fla. 1997).
- IV. Appellant's constitutional rights were not violated by the time parameters of Rule 3.851.
 - V. Appellant was not denied effective assistance of trial

counsel at guilt phase of his trial and appellant's current speculation amounts to mere hindsight second-guessing. The asserted deficiencies were either not deficiencies or the substance of the deficiencies were considered and rejected on direct appeal, or were refuted by the record or did not satisfy the prejudice prong of <u>Strickland v. Washinston</u>, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 80 L.Ed.2d 674 (1984).

- VI. The claim that inadmissible hearsay evidence was introduced at trial was an issue cognizable on direct appeal, not post-conviction and thus is barred.
- VII. The claim that there was no reliable appellate review could have been urged on direct appeal **as** to matters known or reasonably discoverable at that time. The claim is meritless on the allegations asserted.
- VIII. The issue of introduction of prejudicial evidence was a claim for direct appeal and is not cognizable collaterally.
- IX. Trial counsel did not render ineffective assistance during voir dire.
- X. The complaint about the prosecutor's peremptory challenge to a juror was an issue for direct appeal, not Rule 3.850.
- XI. The alleged violation of appellant's right to remain silent was a claim for direct appeal and is barred, as well as meritless.

- XII. Any complaint about the trial court's alleged erroneous instruction to the jury should have been asserted on direct appeal and is now barred.
- XIII. The use of co-conspirator Royston's statements was a matter for direct appeal and is now barred.
- XIV. The complaint about alleged use of misleading testimony and improper argument was an issue for direct appeal not collateral challenge.
- XV. Trial counsel rendered effective assistance at penalty phase and appellant merely engages in second-guessing by urging that more is better.
- XVI. Prosecutorial misconduct claims are matters for direct appeal; the claim is barred.

ž

- XVII. Alleged errors by the trial court in the sentencing order were matters for direct appeal review.
- XVIII. Complaints about the aggravating factors utilized were matters for direct appeal.
- XIX. The complaint that the jury was not told of appellant's good behavior during incarceration is barred as a matter for direct appeal, and meritless.
- **XX**. The challenge to the alleged vagueness of the CCP aggravator instruction is barred as an issue for direct appeal and trial counsel was not ineffective. Harvey v. Dugger, 656 So.2d

1253 (Fla. 1995).

XXI. This Court on direct appeal approved the giving of the HAC jury instruction and thus the claim may not be relitigated.

XXII. The complaint that the jury's sense of responsibility was diminished is barred since it was a claim proper for direct appeal.

XXIII. The claim relating to an alleged burden shifting error is barred as it was an issue for direct appeal.

XXIV. Appellant's challenge to Florida's death penalty statute on constitutional grounds should have been urged on direct appeal and is not cognizable collaterally.

XXV. Mordenti is not innocent of the death penalty as this Court determined on his direct appeal.

XXVI. Claims of improper prosecutorial argument should have been urged on direct appeal and are not properly asserted collaterally.

XXVII. Appellant's complaint about limitations on interviewing jurors cannot support the granting of relief under Rule 3.850; and such rules serve vital governmental interests.

XXVIII. The claim of juror misconduct is barred **as** it was an issue for direct appeal.

XXIX. The capital sentencing statute is not unconstitutional and this claim is barred since it was a matter for direct appeal.

XXX. No factual support is offered for the cumulative error assertion; if there were any error, it is harmless.

8

ARGUMENT

ISSUE I

WHETHER APPELLANT IS ENTITLED TO A HEARING PURSUANT TO **HUFF V. STATE**, 622 **SO.2D** 982 (FLA. 1993).

In <u>Jackson v. Dugger</u>, 633 So.2d 1051 (Fla. 1993), this Court approved the summary denial of Jackson's motion for post-conviction relief and also denied relief on his claim that he should have had a hearing pursuant to <u>Huff v. State</u>, 622 So.2d 982 (Fla. 1993), i.e., a hearing in the trial court for the purpose of determining whether an evidentiary hearing is required and to hear legal argument relating to the motion since:

Huff was intended to be applied prospectively only and, therefore, is not **available** to Jackson.

(633 **So.2d** at 1054)

Thus, we know that the failure to accord a Huff hearing does not constitute fundamental error. Since, as well be shown infra, appellant is not entitled to an evidentiary hearing or to any relief and since almost all of his claims are attempts to circumvent this Court's procedural bar enforcement by the presentation of claims not cognizable for a collateral challenge, this Court may properly determine that the failure to provide a Huff hearing is harmless error. See Groover v. State, ____ So.2d , 22 Florida Law Weekly S509 (Fla. 1997) (even if a Huff hearing

had been required, the trial court's failure to hold one would be harmless error as no evidentiary hearing was required and relief was not warranted on the motion).

¹Appellee notes that many of the claims below which rest totally on the direct appeal record were urged to be incomplete because of Chapter 119 requests irrelevant to the claims asserted.

ISSUE II

NEED FOR AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING.

Although trial courts are encouraged to have evidentiary hearings on post-conviction motions, if the motion substantial factual allegations, or where alleged facts do not render the judgment vulnerable to collateral attack, the motion may be summarily denied. Steinhorst v. State, 498 So.2d 414, 414-415 (Fla. 1986); Porter v. State, 478 So.2d 33 (Fla. 1985). A hearing is only warranted on an ineffective assistance of counsel claim where a defendant alleges specific facts, not conclusively rebutted by the record, which demonstrates a deficiency in performance that prejudiced the defendant. Cherry v. State, 659 So.2d 1069, 1072 (Fla. 1995); Jackson v. Duaaer, 633 So.2d 1051, 1055 (Fla. 1993); Mendvk v. State, 592 So.2d 1076, 1079 (Fla. 1992); Roberts v. State, 568 So.2d 1255, 1259-60 (Fla. 1990); Kennedy v. State, 547 So.2d 912, 913 (Fla. 1989). Since the motion below did not render the conviction or sentence vulnerable to collateral attack, the trial court properly denied the motion without an evidentiary hearing. See Lopez v. Singletary, 634 So.2d 1054 (Fla. 1993); Atkins v. Dugger, 541 So.2d 1165 (Fla. 1989); Puiatti v. Duaaer, 589 So.2d 231 (Fla. 1991).

ISSUE III

WHETHER THE LOWER COURT ERRED REVERSIBLY IN DENYING POST-CONVICTION RELIEF BECAUSE OF ALLEGED VIOLATIONS OF CHAPTER 119.

In his September 4, 1995 motion to vacate (Claim II) appellant claimed that he had not received Chapter 119 records from various state agencies. (R 90-94) On September 30, 1996 the trial court entered its order denying relief, stating:

The allegations in Ground Two that certain state agencies have failed to comply with Chapter 119 public record requests are wholly unrelated to Defendant's conviction and sentence as required by Rule 3.850(a). As such, the allegations are insufficient as a matter of law, and there is no basis on which to grant the relief requested. Claim Two is denied.

(R 221)

On October 21, 1996, appellant filed his motion for rehearing (R 277-406) which in essence repeated his initial petition. Mordenti did not identify what material had been received and what had not been received under Chapter 119. The trial court denied rehearing on January 7, 1997. (R 407)

The record also reflects that on December 2, 1996, prosecutor Karen Cox wrote a letter to counsel for Mordenti expressing a concern that the rehearing petition asserted that no response had been made to the August 11, 1995 letter requesting arrangements for copying the file when the prosecutor's records reflected that on September 4, 1995 the complete files had been copied with an

invoice issued for \$1,633.05 for copying. (SR 2-4)

About a month after the trial court had denied rehearing on the motion for post-conviction relief and after the filing of the notice of appeal on February 6, 1997 (R 408) thereby depriving the lower court of jurisdiction to act, appellant apparently initiated its notices of filing. $(SR 5-234)^2$

Since the prosecutor had responded by providing a copy of its entire file and since appellant apparently made no effort from September 1995 until January of 1997 to identify desired documents and fails even now to specify what has been retrieved from the furnished State Attorney's files that might support a legitimate collateral challenge, his claim should be rejected; alternatively, this Court could affirm the trial court's denial of post-conviction relief and permit a limited remand.

See Lopez v. State, 696 So.2d 725 (Fla. 1997) (Court had previously affirmed trial court's denial of post-conviction relief but remanded to trial court to inspect in camera the sealed portions of state attorney records and allowed thirty day window following date of access to any sealed documents to file any new claims in an amended post-conviction motion. Defendant failed to

This Court by order of July 2, 1997 (SR 1) granted appellant's request for certain notice of filing records and return receipts for February, May and June of 1997. Appellee submits that most of these materials are improper and irrelevant, since they are actions taken by the defense subsequent to the court's ruling and such matters now do not completely inform the Court of responses subsequently submitted by the various agencies.

add new claims after reviewing disclosed materials).

ISSUE IV

WHETHER RULE 3.851 VIOLATES APPELLANT'S RIGHTS UNDER DUE PROCESS AND EQUAL PROTECTION CLAUSES AND THE EIGHTH AMENDMENT.

Appellant complains next about the one-year time parameter established by Rule 3.851 R.Cr.P. As of this writing some forty months have passed since his direct appeal became final with the United States Supreme Court's denial of his certiorari petition on June 20, 1994. The lower court denied the claim for relief on the basis that it was unrelated to appellant's judgment and sentence and a matter more appropriate for consideration by this Court (R 220-221); see commentary to Rule 3.851, A similar claim has previously been rejected by this Court in M. Johnson v. State, 536 So.2d 1009 (Fla. 1988) (rejecting challenge to the two-year time provision of Rule 3.850) and this Court should again reject the claim. See also Remeta v. Duaaer. 622 So.2d 452, 456 (Fla. 1993) (rejecting defense contention that eight-month acceleration requiring the filing of post-conviction pleadings violated his constitutional rights); Roberts v. State, 568 So.2d 1255 (Fla. 1990).

ISSUE V

WHETHER APPELLANT WAS DENIED EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF TRIAL COUNSEL A T THE GUILT/INNOCENCE PHASE OF TRIAL.

I. THE LEGAL ST-

courts have repeatedly acknowledged that highly The deferential review of counsel's conduct is warranted in an ineffective assistance challenge especially where strategy is involved; intensive scrutiny and second-guessing of attorney performance are not permitted. Spaziano v. Singletary, 36 F.3d 1028 (11th Cir. 1994); Routly v. Singletary, 33 F.3d 1279 (11th Cir. 1994). Judicial scrutiny is highly deferential because the craft of trying cases is far from an exact science and is replete with uncertainties and obligatory judgment calls. Bolender v. Sinsletary, 16 F.3d 1547 (11th Cir. 1994). The test for determining whether counsel's performance was deficient is whether some reasonable lawyer at trial could have acted under the circumstances as defense counsel acted at trial; the test has nothing to do with what the best lawyers would have done or what most good lawyers would have done. White v. Singletary, 972 F.2d 1218 (11th Cir. 1992).

The standard is not how present counsel would have proceeded in hindsight, but rather whether there was both a deficient performance and a reasonable probability of a different outcome.

Cherry v. State, 659 So. 2d 1069 (Fla. 1995).

A court considering a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel need not determine whether counsel's performance was deficient when it is clear that alleged deficiency was not prejudicial. Williamson v. Dugger, 651 So.2d 84 (Fla. 1994). The court must determine whether the alleged omissions are of such magnitude as to constitute serious error or substantial deficiency falling measurably outside range of professionally acceptable performance and whether the deficiency compromised the process to such a degree as to undermine confidence in the correctness of the result. Ferguson v. Sinsletary, 632 So.2d 53 (Fla. 1993).

II. THE INSTANT 3.850 MOTION.

Appellant, by essentially repeating almost verbatim the 3.850 Motion asserting ineffective assistance of trial counsel at guilt phase (R 101-127), urges -- without arguing why the trial court's disposition was erroneous -- deficient performance in the following broad categories:

- (A) The alleged failure to thoroughly investigate Mordenti's alibi, failure to present corroborating evidence and failure to call witnesses who could verify Mordenti's whereabouts the night Thelma Royston was murdered.

 (Brief, p. 16)
- (B) The alleged failure to conduct adequate voir dire, failure to abject to the introduction of inflammatory and improper evidence, failure to present adequate arguments

- to the jury, and failure to request appropriate jury instructions. (Brief, p. 19)
- (C) The alleged failure to investigate or elicit testimony regarding Gail Mordenti's financial circumstances, the nature of her divorce from appellant, her romantic relationship with the victim's husband Larry Royston, and the fact that she was immune from prosecution. (Brief, p. 18)
- (D) The alleged failure to investigate hotel records where Gail Mordenti and defendant met to further their conspiracy in addition to related telephone records.

 (Brief, p. 18)
- (E) The alleged failure to impeach Ms. Mordenti. (Brief, pp. 20-21)
- (F) The alleged failure to investigate and interview cellmate

 Horace Barnes and failure to move for mistrial after

 Barnes testified that defendant informed him that he was

 "in the mob". (Brief, pp. 23-30)
- (G) The alleged failure to effectively impeach other state witnesses and failing to object to certain testimony.

 (Brief, pp. 31-34)
- (H) The alleged failure to move for a change of venue.

 (Brief, pp. 35-36)
- (I) The alleged failure to allow appellant to testify in his

own behalf. (Brief, p. 36)

(A) The trial court correctly denied relief on this point (the failure to prepare and present alibi) at R 222:

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